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July 27, 2022

The 
Administrative Law Judge
Office of Hearings Operations
550 Government Street, Suite 200
Mobile, AL 36602-2010

Re:

Dear Judge :

On July 21, 2022, I received your proffer letter of July 20, 2022, via encrypted e-mail with
a copy of the electronic nonmedical file.

I do not believe the Fairhope Field Office (FO) took proper action in accordance with POMS
RS 01802.334 and RS 01802.344. The e-mail from the Fairhope FO in Exh. 39D shows it relied on
its interpretation that because  did not file tax returns or amend those returns to
reflect that she has self-employment income (SEI) and paid taxes on that SEI, she lacks the
necessary quarters of coverage (QCs) to have insured status. It indicated that she had only 3 years,
3 months, and 15 days to correct the years of earnings with SSA.

That is a misapplication of the POMS.  has been seeking to amend her tax
returns to divide the earnings reflected on her husband’s earnings record between him and her on
a 50-50 basis. (See Exh. 40D, including p. 2.) But that is not necessary under RS 01802.334, RS
01802.344, and SSR 84-11. According to those two POMS provisions and ruling, once there is a
husband and wife business arrangement, even if all earnings for self-employment are reported by
only one spouse, there can be a finding of a partnership for Social Security purposes. That is what
existed with  and . It is then incumbent upon SSA to follow the instructions
in RS 01802.334 and allocate the earnings equally between Mr. and Mrs.  (see RS
01802.344).
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There is no requirement that tax returns have to be amended unless there were unreported 
earnings by , the original reporter. RS 01802.344 B.3. All of the earnings were 
reported. What is required is that SSA allocate the earnings for unbarred years and divide them 
equally, as there was no partnership agreement to the contrary. RS 01802.344 B.l. See also RS 
01802.360. 

As noted by the Fairhope FO,  did indicate that  performed 50% 
of the work from 2014 to 2019. (Exh. 42D.)  signed a Statement of Claimant or Other 
Person (SSA-795) to this effect. (Exh. 49D.) It confirms there was a partnership as contemplated by 
RS 01802.334, RS 01802.344, and SSR 84-11.  signed another Statement of Claimant 
or Other Person (SSA-795). (Exh. SOD.) It reiterates with more specificity they had asserted and 
what the Fairhope FO said was lacking regarding the years before 2014. It is the contention of both 

 that they each provided equal labor and contribution to the business. It was 
a husband-wife business that was a bona fide partnership. The earnings should be allocated equally 
going back to at least 2005. 

, the longtime tax preparer for the , provided a letter dated July 25, 
2022. (Exh. 48D.) He acknowledged his error in not preparing tax returns in the same manner as he 
did in 2005-2007, when those returns reflected an equal division of the income. His letter contains 
the same grid in Exh. 40D, p. 2, which he originally prepared. 

SSA has access to  earnings record. Copies of  tax returns 
are in Exh. 7D. SSA should review those tax returns, reallocate those earnings equally between Mr. 
and , and then determine the insured status of . 

Please issue a decision with instructions to the Fairhope FO to take additional action in 
compliance with these two POMS provisions and SSR 84-11. Thank you for your consideration. 

~--4--;:;::o~/._.,.__ 
Gilbert B. Laden 

GBL/blt 

cc:  
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Dear Judge : 

II 
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September 29, 2022 
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On September 23, 2022, I received your proffer letter of September 21, 2022. It appears that the Fairhope 
Field Office (FO) agreed with the arguments I made in my response of July 27 to your earlier proffer. 

More specifically, the FO stated a partnership determination can be rendered by you and that SSA should 
be able to split the earnings between  and her husband. While the FO did not explicitly say so, 
that should result in insured status for . This would then allow SSA to proceed with evaluation 
of her DIB claim. 

My July 27 response in Exh. 51 D provides more detail, which may be useful toward a favorable decision 
with a remand to the FO to take appropriate action toward acknowledging a bona fide spousal partnership, 
causing the earnings attributed to  to be reallocated equally between both spouses, recomputation 
of her insured status, and proceeding with evaluation of her DIB claim. 

If you need anything further, please let me know. 

GBUel 

cc:  



• Gilbert B. Laden 
Attorney at Law 

LadenLaw 
--DISABILITY---

Board Certified in 
Social Security Disability 
by the National Board 
ofTrial Advocacy 
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I am responding to the proffer of Exh. 55D, which is a Report of Contact with the Field 
Office (FO) dated January 31, 2023. I want to address that exhibit, but I also want to make you aware 
of additional documents I submitted to the file. These include Earnings Record Infonnation dated 
October 27, 2022, which was sent by SSA to ,  husband (Exh. 
57D) and Earnings Records Infonnation dated February 1, 2023, which was sent by SSA to  

 (Exh. 58D).  authorized me to submit his document to the file. 

As to the report of contact from the Fairhope FO,  stated she transferred 
the earnings from  record to , except for the year of 2015. She said, 
"NH is not insured- DFI 10/1/2019 and DLI 12/31/23." 

That statement seems to be incongruous. If her DLI is December 31, 2023, and her AOD is 
June 12, 2020, then she would have insured status for a period of disability, commencing with June 
12, 2020. At this point, that would be an unadjudicated period. 

Without examining ' s computations, I do not know if she allocated one-half 
of the earnings attributed to   going back to 2005, in accordance with POMS RS 
01802.334 and RS O 1802.344 and SSR 84-11, as I discussed more fully in my two previous response 
to proffer letters, dated July 27, 2022 (Exh. 51 D) and September 29, 2022 (Exh. 54D). In the second 
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response, I mentioned that the Fairhope FO agreed with my assessment indicated in my first 
response. (See Exh. 52D, which is a report of contact with FO dated September 20, 2022.) 

In Exh. 52D, stated: 

After reviewing the proofs submitted by Gil Laden and the POMS references listed 
in his letter, it appears a partnership determination can be rendered by the ALJ since 
the husband and wife are alleging that they had a valid business partnership. SSA 
should be able to split the income between the two records, however, as a result of 
correcting earnings record and removing earnings from ■ 

earnings record, we will have to recompute benefit. 

Thus, if the attribution of those earnings were done in compliance with the POMS and, 
presumably, in accordance with SSR 84-1 I, then the previously filed tax returns did not need to be 
amended. As argued in the July 27, 2022, response to proffer (Exh.51D), that is precisely what 
POMS RS 01802.334andRS 018 02.344state as well as does SSR 84-11. Therefore, 
erred in not transferring earnings for the year 2015. Because there was no need to have filed an 
amended tax return, then reliance on the information from the IRS that the amended 
tax return was not done within the legal period to have charged and collected taxes was erroneous. 
That is underscored by the fact that she correctly transferred earnings for other years even though 
the earlier tax returns for those years were not amended and no additional taxes were charged and 
collected. Again, the referenced POMS sections and SSR 82-41 control. 

Exh. 48D contains a letter fr�� dated July 25, 2022. I alluded to this exhibit in 
my first response to proffer. ■ �n the longtime tax preparer for 

. He set forth the year- by-year earnings amount for the tax returns he prepared for the 
, with I 00% being attributed to in most years. 

Exh. 49D is a statement from , who provided similar earnings information that 
squares with what-stated. After reviewing this earnings information, it would appear that 
after one-half would be attributed to , she would have sufficient quarters of coverage 
to be both fully insured and disability insured. 

The Earnings Record Infonnation, dated October 27, 2022, sent to by SSA 
( Exh. 57D), appears to reflect an approximately equal division of the earnings in question, at least 
thr�wever, the Earnings Record Information, dated February 1, 2023 (Exh. 58D), sent 
to - by SSA does not show the attribution of earnings to earnings 
record for all the pertinent years except 2014 and 2016. It seems to rely solely on the amended tax 
returns. In short, it did not follow the POMS and SSR 82-41 for the years before 2014 and for 2015 
and after 2016. 
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I respectfully request that the Fairhope FO be instructed to clarify ' s statement 
that , the number holder (NH), was not insured in spite of the DFI and DLI it found. 
Further, I request that the FO confirm that it did attribute one-half of  earnings dating 
back to 2005 through 2019, including 2015 but excepting 2005-2007, but ifit did not, to make the 
correct adjustments in further compliance as it agreed to do on September 20, 2022. 

Thank you for your consideration. 

[r__,--
G ii be rt B. Laden 

GBL/blt 

cc:  
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